1978

Carl Haueter v. Marvin E. Peguillan, Wilma J.  
Peguillan, His Wife; Francis H. Kellogg, Et Al : Brief  
of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

### POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT KELLOGG WAS A BENEFICIARY AND COULD BENEFIT FROM THE INSURANCE POLICY PURCHASED BY HAUETER ON JUNE 29, 1972.

### POINT II

SECTION 19 OF THE UNIFORM REAL ESTATE CONTRACT DOES NOT MODIFY, CHANGE, OR ALTER IN ANY WAY THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPH 18 OF THE UNIFORM REAL ESTATE CONTRACT.

### POINT III

THE COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT KELLOGG WAS A BONAFIDE PURCHASER FOR VALUE WHEN HE PURCHASED FROM PEGUILLAN AS THE ASSIGNMENT PLACED HIM IN THE SHOES OF PEGUILLAN.

## NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a suit to quiet title and to have the Court interpret paragraphs 18 and 19 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract.

## DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

Judge Bryant H. Croft held Peguillan and Kellogg, his assignee, could collect twice under paragraph 19 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract. Haueter paid Thayne the Judgment of \$3,114.40 as permitted by paragraph 18. Then the Court required him to pay again prior to quitting title in him.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Decree quitting title and return of money paid over and above what Peguillan and Kellogg were entitled to under the Uniform Real Estate Contract.

## FACTS

PROPERTY. This case involves real property described as follows:

Beginning at a point 32.95 feet East and 462.08 feet South of the Northwest corner of Lot 15, Block 16, Five-Acre Plat "A", Big Field Survey, running thence East 157 feet; thence South 36.25 feet; thence West 157 feet; thence North 36.25 feet to the place of beginning.

This property is also described as 1463 South 10th East, Salt Lake City, Utah.

CHAIN OF TITLE. On June 30, 1969 Florentine L. Scarlet and Ruth S. B. Scarlet, his wife, did contract and sell by Uniform Real Estate Contract the house and lot at 1463 South 10th East.

Salt Lake City, Utah. The Uniform Real Estate Contract showed the Scarlets as the sellers and Marvin E. Peguillan and Wilma J. Peguillan, his wife, as the buyers. This contract is annexed hereto as Exhibit A and by reference made a part hereof. This contract is still in full force and effect. Carl Haueter, assignee and plaintiff herein, is now paying the Scarlets \$125 a month directly and there is a balance still due the Scarlets on the contract of approximately \$4,000.00

THAYNE JUDGMENT. Marvin E. Peguillan gave Cleon Thayne a check in the amount of \$2,000 which failed to clear the bank. Thayne sued Peguillan. Peguillan was duly served with a Summons out of the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah and, on April 17, 1972 Judgment was rendered in favor of Cleon Thayne against Peguillan in the amount of \$2,000, \$7 costs, and \$558 attorney fees. Said Judgment was docketed and entered in the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah on April 13, 1972 in Docket 121, Page 548, Civil Case 203794. Peguillan made no attempt to pay the Judgment. (TR 37)

PEGUILLAN SELLS TO LARSON. On April 24, 1972 Marvin E. Peguillan and Wilma J. Peguillan as sellers sold to John C. Larson, as buyer, the above-described property by Uniform Real Estate Contract. The sale was for \$17,200: \$4,000 cash and the balance of \$13,200 to be paid as follows: \$175 due June 1, 1972 and \$175 due each and every month thereafter until the property is paid in full. (Of this \$175, \$125 was to be paid to the Scarlets under the first Uniform Real Estate Contract.) Paragraph

6 of the contract stated,

"It is understood that there presently exists an obligation against said property in favor of Florentine L. Scarlet and Ruth S. B. Scarlet with an unpaid balance of \$9,884.41, as of May 15, 1972."

This April 24, 1972 contract made no mention of the Judgment in favor of Cleon Thayne in the amount of \$2,565 even though the Peguillans well knew that the Judgment existed and was a good and sufficient lien against the property.

LARSON SELLS PROPERTY TO HAUETER. On June 20, 1972 John C. Larson conveyed all the right title and interest he had in the April 24, 1972 contract to Haueter by a good and sufficient written assignment and by way of a Quit-Claim Deed. The assignment of contract and the Quit-Claim Deed were both dated June 20, 1972. On this date Haueter paid to John C. Larson \$3,678.44 (TR 59) and assumed the balance then and there due the Scarlets in the amount of \$9,884.41, with the understanding that the Scarlets were to be paid at the rate of \$125 a month (TR 59). Any and all interest the Peguillans had in the property would be paid to them at the rate of \$50 a month. It being represented that the Peguillans interest was \$3, 223.09 (TR 60). (Again there was no mention of the Thayne Judgment.) At the closing of the sale between Haueter and Larson there was taken from the down payment of Haueter \$65 to purchase title insurance. The \$65 premium was charged against the monies to be received by John C. Larson.

On June 29, 1972 Pioneer National Title Insurance Company issued a title insurance policy to Haueter in the amount of \$17,000.



and they agreed to insure the above-described property. The Thayne Judgment did not appear in the policy under special exceptions. Therefore, the policy insured Carl Haueter against the Thayne Judgment (TR 75). See Exhibit 19-D.

Marvin E. Peguillan testified at the trial that he gave John C. Larson a policy of insurance when he sold to Larson and that the title insurance policy between Peguillan and Larson failed to show the Thayne Judgment under the special exceptions. Therefore, Marvin E. Peguillan claims that he insured the title when he sold to Larson.

It was admitted by Peguillan that the contract of insurance issued to Larson provided therein under Exclusions from Coverage: defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the insured claimant not known to the company and not shown by public records, but known to the insurance claimant either at the date of the policy or the date such claimant acquired an estate or interest insured by the policy.

It cannot be denied that Marvin E. Peguillan was not covered under the insurance policy as he was the wrongdoer and he was the one who claims to have purchased the policy well knowing that the property in question had a good and sufficient Judgment lien against it. Certainly Peguillan knew that under the policy he was not covered as he had taken out the policy after the Judgment was docketed against him.

SHERIFF SOLD HOUSE. On August 21, 1975 Cleon Thayne did levy on the house and lot and the Sheriff of Salt Lake County

did place the house for sale on September 30, 1975. At the sale Haueter repurchased his property from the Sheriff for \$3,114.61 which was the total amount of the Thayne Judgment and lien (TR 60). Peguillan was fully paid by reason of Paragraph 18 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract which provided,

"In the event there are any liens or encumbrances against said premises other than those herein provided for or referred to, or in the event any liens or encumbrances other than herein provided for shall hereafter accrue against the same by acts or neglect of the Seller, then the Buyer may, at his option, pay and discharge the same and receive credit on the amount then remaining due hereunder in the amount of any such payment or payments and thereafter the payment herein provided to be made may, at the option of the Buyer, be suspended until such time as such suspended payments shall equal any sums advanced as aforesaid."

Prior to the Sheriff selling said property, Carl Haueter paid Peguillan and Kellogg \$1,150 (TR 20). In addition thereto, he paid off the Thayne Judgment in the amount of \$3,114.61. (TR 60) As of September 30, 1975 Carl Haueter had, in effect, paid Peguillan and Kellogg \$4,264.61 when, in truth and in fact, he only owed \$3,223.09. (TR 60). It was the position of Carl Haueter that he had more than paid Peguillan and Kellogg. He therefore brought suit against Peguillan and Kellogg to quiet title to the above-described property.

PEGUILLANS ASSIGNED TO THEIR UNCLE, FRANCIS H. KELLOGG

(TR 22) On July 11, 1972 Marvin E. Peguillan and Wilma Peguillan assigned by a standard Assignment Agreement, a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit B and by reference made a part hereof, all of their right title and interest in said property. The

assignment was to Francis H. Kellogg and Josephine Kellogg, his wife, dated July 11, 1972. In addition to the assignment there was a Quit-Claim Deed issued by the Peguillans to the Kelloggs, also dated July 11, 1972, but not recorded until August 30, 1972. Said deed was recorded by Marvin E. Peguillan.

In the assignment Kellogg did solemnly agree that he stood in the shoes of Marvin E. Peguillan and that he would duly perform all conditions and be bound by all of the provisions of the Uniform Real Estate Contract which existed between the Peguillans and Carl Haueter. The Kelloggs did further solemnly agree to keep, observe and perform all terms, conditions, and provisions of the Uniform Real Estate Contract.

The Kelloggs did, by the assignment, further agree to save and hold harmless the Peguillans from any and all actions, suits, costs, damages and claims whatsoever rising out of the acts or admissions of the Peguillans. The Kelloggs lived in the State of Washington. Therefore, Haueter was unable to serve them in his suit to quiet title. Peguillan went through bankruptcy (TR 28, TR 88) and duly listed Carl Haueter and the title insurance company, after which Francis H. Kellogg (Josephine Kellogg was deceased) did Counterclaim against Haueter (TR 39) and allege that because of Paragraph 19 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract which reads,

"The Seller on receiving the payments herein reserved to be paid at the time and in the manner above mentioned agrees to execute and deliver to the Buyer or assigns, a good and sufficient warranty deed conveying the title to the above described

premises free and clear of all encumbrances except as herein mentioned, and except as may have accrued by or through the act or neglect of the Buyer, and to furnish at his expense, a policy of title insurance in the amount of the purchase price or at the option of the Seller, an abstract brought to date at time of sale or at any time during the term of this agreement, or at time of delivery of the deed, at the option of Buyer."

Francis H. Kellogg duly alleged in his Counterclaim that by Marvin E. Peguillan giving a title policy to John C. Larson when he sold to him on April 24, 1972, even though this policy terminated when Larson sold to Haueter on June 20, 1972. Kellogg asserts that he is the beneficiary of the policy issued to Carl Haueter on June 29, 1972 because of the \$65 premium taken from Haueter's down payment and deducted from Larson's share, and claimed Haueter must now pay Peguillan and Kellogg two and one-half times because Paragraph 19 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract so states.

The facts are undisputed that the policy that existed between the insurance company and Larson was terminated, disposed of and held for naught when Larson sold to Haueter. A new and different policy was duly issued on June 29, 1972 in which Pioneer National Title Company contracted and agreed with Carl Haueter as the sole insured. Said policy being introduced into evidence and identified as Exhibit 19-D and by reference made a part hereof. Kellogg makes no claim that he paid for any premiums or that his money was in any way involved in the premiums paid the insurance company for the June 29, 1972 policy. (See Exhibit 19-D)

It was not until May 1974 that Carl Haueter found out about the Thayne Judgment. (TR 64)

After the Sheriff's sale Carl Haueter, the sole insured, brought suit against the title insurance company under the policy he had purchased on June 29, 1972. As a result of that suit he recovered \$6,000. It should be kept in mind that he had to pay his own attorney, and the suit was pending for more than a year.

There was no privity of contract between Kellogg and the Pioneer Title Insurance Company. The policy insured Carl Haueter and Carl Haueter only. Francis H. Kellogg, the assignee of Marvin E. Peguillan, stood in the shoes of Peguillan and was disqualified from insurance under any policy as Peguillan had no right to buy title insurance once he knew there was a judgment lien against the property. Peguillan actually defrauded Carl Haueter when he sold the property to him and represented in writing that the title was clear, with the exception of the monies owed the Scarlets. Carl Haueter relied on this representation when he bought the property. When Carl Haueter found out about the judgment lien in May 1974, he went to Peguillan and Kellogg and requested that they remove the lien. They refused to do so. (TR 37, TR 63, TR 65)

It is undisputed that the lien judgment which was paid by Carl Haueter accrued to the benefit of Peguillan and Kellogg as it removed the judgment lien which was against the property.

The issue of title insurance is completely foreign to this case and never should have been made a part in any respect.

ARGUMENT - POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT KELLOGG WAS A BENEFICIARY AND COULD BENEFIT FROM THE INSURANCE POLICY PURCHASED BY HAUETER ON JUNE 29, 1972.

Marvin E. Peguillan, well knowing that the property in question had a good and sufficient judgment lien against it, sold to Larson. Immediately thereafter he conveys by assignment and quit-claim deed all of his remaining interests to Kellogg, his uncle, both of whom had been in business together. (TR 31) Peguillan admittedly remained his agent and collected \$1,150 for and on behalf of Kellogg (TR 30). Subsequently, Peguillan filed bankruptcy in the United States District Court for the Central Division listing the following as creditors: Carl Haueter, Cleon Thayne, Airflow Heating and Electric, White Concrete, American Finance, John Jepkins d/b/a Quality Tops, American West, Acceptance Corporation and Pioneer National Title Insurance Company. (TR 8) After Peguillan was well into his bankruptcy proceedings Kellogg returned from Washington and brought suit under his Counterclaim against Haueter, claiming that he is the beneficiary under the insurance policy issued to Carl Haueter when he purchased the property on June 29, 1972. At this point Peguillan and Kellogg had been paid over \$4,250; \$1,000 more than they had coming under the contract. There can be little doubt that Peguillan was the wrongdoer. He, in effect, purchased a policy after his house was on fire. This policy was extinguished

and held for naught when Larson sold the property to Haueter. A new and different policy was issued, new search was made and different parties contracted with the insurance company. Peguillan had no privity, no connection of any type or nature, with the purchase of the policy by Haueter.

Louis M. S. Livingston, President and counsel of Western States Title for more than 14 years, and an eminent authority on title insurance law, testified as follows:

Q: Mr. Livingston, when you issued the policy to Mr. Haueter, when your company issued that policy to Mr. Haueter, that policy then took the place of any other policies that had been issued, did it not?

A: To the extent that there was no longer any insurable interest in any prior insured, it did. (TR 110)

Q: But that policy, the policy that you issued to Carl Haueter, was a new and different contractual relationship between your company and Mr. Haueter's; isn't that correct?

A: Yes.

Q: And nobody else had a right to sue under that policy except Mr. Haueter, did they?

A: Yes, correct.

Q: Who else?

A: I am saying, correct. I agree with you. (TR 111)

Carl Haueter was the sole insured under the June 29, 1972 title insurance policy. (See Exhibit 19-D) Neither Kellogg nor Peguillan made any claim that they paid or contributed to any premiums whatsoever for this policy. It is conceded that neither Peguillan nor Kellogg could sue under this policy, nor did they

have any rights of any type or nature by virtue of the terms and conditions of the policy. (In fact, Peguillan was barred under the terms of the policy from suing as he well knew there was a judgment lien against the property at the time he sold the property to Larson.) Subsequently, Larson sold the property to Haueter at which time the title insurance policy (Exhibit 18) was issued. Peguillan and Kellogg assert and claim that because of Paragraph 19 of the real estate contract they became the beneficiaries under the title insurance policy.

Paragraph 19 reads as follows: "The Seller on receiving the payments herein reserved to be paid at the time and in the manner above mentioned agrees to execute and deliver to the Buyer or assigns, a good and sufficient warranty deed conveying the title to the above described premises free and clear of all encumbrances except as herein mentioned, and except as may have accrued by or through the acts or neglect of the Buyer, and to furnish at his expense, a policy of title insurance in the amount of the purchase price or at the option of the Seller, an abstract brought to date at time of sale or at any time during the term of this agreement, or at time of delivery of the deed, at the option of Buyer."

Paragraph 19 in no manner or in any terms or conditions alters, modifies, or changes the language in paragraph 18 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract. There is nothing in Paragraph 19 which gives a wrongdoer the right to collect twice under the contract.

The issuance of the title insurance policy (obtained by fraud) certainly does not permit a seller to saddle a twice-removed unsuspecting buyer with a judgment lien and a sheriff sale. To permit this conduct would permit and encourage the defrauding of title insurance companies and the saddling of



twice-removed buyers to a potential lawsuit. This insurance policy (Exhibit 19-D) by its very terms confers rights and imposes liabilities only upon the parties to it. Pioneer Title Insurance contracted solely with Carl Haueter. There were no third party beneficiaries provided for in the policy. In interpreting the policy the established rules should be applied as follows:

1. The policy and document themselves are the best evidence of contents.
2. No oral testimony should be admitted to prove otherwise, nor is it permissible to add or contradict the terms of the writing by oral testimony.

It should be kept in mind that this was a second sale and the title insurance policy was twice removed from any transaction between Peguillan and Larson. The transfer of the title from Larson to Haueter did not transfer any rights or privileges, nor give any rights or privileges under any previously issued title insurance policies. When Larson conveyed to Haueter the policy between Peguillan and Larson became void. A new policy was issued and the new owner became the insured under the new policy. The policy between Peguillan and Larson became null and void. In this regard the Court should be aware of the established law concerning the issuance of insurance policies which requires the highest good faith between the contracting parties. A person desiring insurance is bound to make a frank disclosure of all circumstances which are likely to influence the insurer in accepting the risk. He is bound to communicate

all facts of which he has knowledge. If a material fact is concealed the policy would be void because the insured would not have accepted the risk had he known of said defect in material fact. It is universally held that where there is concealed a material misrepresentation of a material fact and such misrepresentation is intentional, the policy between the parties would be void. The concealment by Peguillan of the Thayne Judgment certainly disqualified Peguillan and Kellogg from recovering under any policy which might have existed between Peguillan and Larson.

The damages Haueter received from Pioneer Title Insurance Company merely reimbursed him for his actual damages suffered because Peguillan had his house and lot placed for sale. Haueter was required to hire an attorney and to bring suit on the policy. He was required to go through the entire lawsuit. The Court should keep in mind that Haueter received insurance money on a contract to which the defendants, Kellogg and Peguillan are in no way privy and, in respect to which, their own wrongful acts can give them no equities. The extent of the liability of the wrongdoers (Peguillan and Kellogg) is dependent on the extent of the injuries inflicted by their wrongful acts, not by the question of whether Haueter received damages under his title insurance policy.

Haueter can bring but one suit under the Uniform Real Estate Contract for the wrong done him by Peguillan and Kellogg. Peguillan's wrong should not be rewarded and he should not receive

a windfall by reason of a second and distinct title insurance policy which paid damages under a policy that Peguillan was in no way privy and his wrongful act can give him no equities.

The Collateral Source rule was adopted by the Utah Supreme Court in the case of Phillip vs. Wendell Bennet, 21 Utah 1, and Otley vs. Hill, 21 Utah 397. Certainly the collateral source doctrine is not and should not be limited to cases where the plaintiff has previously paid consideration (in form of insurance premiums) for the benefits or services he received or where there has been a payment of cash. To do so would result in the wrongdoer receiving a windfall. (Such as in this case, the wrongdoer would be paid two and one-half the amount he had coming to him.)

It is submitted that to permit the wrongdoer to recover under Haueter's policy would be illogical and would shock the most enlightened conscience. This reasoning is based upon the essential fairness and common sense.

#### ARGUMENT - POINT II

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