1978

Carl Haueter v. Marvin E. Peguillan, Wilma J.
Peguillan, His Wife; Francis H. Kellogg, Et Al : Brief
of Respondent Kellogg

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE COURT DID NOT RULE THAT KELLOGG WAS A BENEFICIARY OF ANY TITLE INSURANCE POLICY. FURTHERMORE, THE INSURANCE POLICY WAS NOT PURCHASED BY HAUETER.

POINT II

THE COURT DID NOT RULE THAT PARAGRAPH 19 OF THE UNIFORM REAL ESTATE CONTRACT MODIFIED THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPH 18.

POINT III

THE COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT KELLOGG HAD NO KNOWLEDGE OF THE THAYNE JUDGMENT AND THAT HE PURCHASED THE SELLER'S INTEREST IN THE CONTRACT FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION.

POINT IV

THE COLLATERAL SOURCE RULE IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CASE.

POINT V

THE TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY BY PAYING THE ENTIRE CLAIM HAS SUBROGATED TO ANY CLAIM APPELLANT HAD AGAINST ANY THIRD PARTIES.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

CARL HAUETER,)
)
 Plaintiff-Appellant,)
)
 vs.) Supreme Court No. 15497
)
 MARVIN E. PEGUILLAN, WILMA J.)
 PEGUILLAN, his wife; FRANCIS)
 H. KELLOGG, et al.,)
)
 Defendants-Respondent)

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This action involves a Complaint and Counterclaim arising out of a Uniform Real Estate Contract. The Complaint is denominated a quiet-title action and also contained causes of action for fraud. The Counterclaim was one for termination and forfeiture of the Uniform Real Estate action by the Respondent for failure of the Appellant to make payments.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURTS

Judge Bryant H. Croft found no cause of action as to the Plaintiff-Appellants case. The Court ruled that Appellant had not made payments to Respondent since May, 1974 and was therefore in default. However, the Court determined that it would be inequitable to forfeit the Appellant's interest in the Uniform Real Estate Contract. The Court, therefore, entered judgment in favor of Respondent for the sum of \$1,950.00 for back payments, plus \$750.00 as reasonable attorney's fees.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondent Kellogg seeks to have affirmed the District Court's judgment.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about April 24, 1972, Marvin E. Peguillan and Wilma J. Peguillan, his wife, sold their real property at 1463 South 10th East, Salt Lake City, Utah (which property is the subject of this action) to John C. Larsen, pursuant to a Uniform Real Estate Contract (Exhibit I-P). On June 20, 1972, John C. Larsen assigned the Buyer's interest in said property to the Appellant. On July 11, 1972, Marvin E. Peguillan and Wilma J. Peguillan conveyed the Seller's interest in said real estate contract to Francis H. Kellogg, the Respondent herein and Josephine Kellogg, his wife, who is now deceased. At the time of the sale of the real property from Peguillan to Larsen, Peguillan provided Larsen with a policy of title insurance in which Pioneer National Title Insurance Company was the insurer and Western States Title Company was Pioneer's authorized agent (Tr. 32, Exhibit 8-D). When Appellant purchased the property from John C. Larsen, Larsen provided a title policy in which Pioneer National Title Insurance Company was the insurer and Western States Title Company was the authorized agent (Exhibit 19-D). Mr. Ray J. Keys, who performed the closing for the Larsen-Haueter transaction, testified that Mr. Larsen paid for the title insurance policy (Tr.97). The Buyers and Sellers statement prepared at the closing (Exhibits 14-D and 15-D) further indicated that Mr. Larsen paid for said policy.

At the time of the sale of the property from Peguillan to Larsen, there was a judgment against Peguillan in favor of Mr. Cleon Thayne. Although Appellant claims that there were other judgments on the property, all of the other judgments claimed were entered against Peguillan after the property had been sold to Larsen, and therefore are not liens on Appellant's interest. The Court indicated that the question of the other judgments was handled at pre-trial, that the other parties were not served and that pursuant to stipulation, and the law, any claim as to other judgment were dismissed (Tr.109). In fact, judgments entered against a person after he has sold his interest in the property do not cloud the title to that property.

The Appellant has paid \$3,114.61 to clear the Thayne judgment. Thereafter, Appellant brought suit against the title insurance company which had failed to disclose the judgment on either title policy, Exhibit 8-D or Exhibit 19-D for recovery of the sum of \$3,114.61 and other alleged damages. At trial, a settlement was reached in which the Appellant received \$6,000.00 from the title insurance company, considerably more than the amount expended by Appellant. (Tr. 83 and Tr. 108-109).

The essence of the Appellant's claim is that because of the Cleon Thayne judgment, he is entitled to credit against the Real Estate Contract assigned to Respondent Kellogg for the amount of said judgment (\$3,114.61), even though he has received payment from the title company in the sum of \$6,000.00 for that judgment.

There is ample testimony that Respondent Kellogg was unaware of the Cleon Thayne judgment at the time he purchased the Seller's interest in the property (Tr. 30-31 and Tr. 55). There is further testimony that Respondent Kellogg paid \$2,200.00 in consideration for having the Seller's interest in the Real Estate Contract assigned to him (Tr. 55) and (Exhibit 10-D). Despite Appellant's constant reference, both in the trial and in his brief, to Kellogg as a "wrong-doer" (see for example Page 14 of Appellant's Brief), the Court found the facts to be exactly the opposite (Tr. 79).

The lower court ruled that the Appellant did not have a cause of action against Respondent Kellogg as a result of the Cleon Thayne judgment, and that pursuant to the contractual relationships between the parties, the title insurance company had responsibility for making payment to Appellant, which it did.

It is clear from the Appellant's testimony, that this action was not brought on behalf of the title insurance company (Tr.

Appellant alleges in his Brief (Page 10) that Haueter paid \$4,250.00. This comes from adding the \$1,150.00 paid to the credit Appellant seeks of \$3,114.61. No evidence was introduced showing payments of \$4,250.00.

The Appellant has consistently stated in his Brief, that Peguillan knew that the judgment existed and that he defrauded the Appellant (see Brief Pages 4, 5 and 9). Although this issue is not material to the case before the Court, the record discloses that the only testimony on the issue is that Peguillan was not aware of the judgment at the time that he sold to Larsen (Tr. 31). Furthermore,

the Appellant's statement on Page 9 that "Peguillan actually defrauded Carl Haueter when he sold the property to him" is untrue. Peguillan did not sell the property to Haueter and there is no evidence from Haueter, or anyone else, that Peguillan made any representations to Haueter, or even knew Haueter prior to the sale from Larsen to Haueter.

ARGUMENT - POINT 1

THE COURT DID NOT RULE THAT KELLOGG WAS A BENEFICIARY OF ANY TITLE INSURANCE POLICY. FURTHERMORE, THE INSURANCE POLICY WAS NOT PURCHASED BY HAUETER.

Appellant's first argument is without merit. The Court did not rule that Kellogg was the beneficiary of the title insurance policy. Neither the record nor the Findings of Fact and Conclusions supports Appellant's contention. Furthermore, the Court and the evidence show conclusively that Haueter did not purchase any title insurance policy germane to this case. One title insurance policy (Exhibit 8-D) was purchased by Peguillan. The other policy (Exhibit 19-D), was purchased by Larsen. Appellant's brief argues a conspiracy theory which Appellant did not prove in trial. The Court clearly ruled at the end of the Plaintiff's evidence that Appellant failed to convince the Court that Kellogg knew of the Thayne judgment or was engaged in any conspiracy or collaboration with Peguillan to defraud anybody (Tr. 95). Appellant's Point 1 is obviously intended to be a straw-man which Appellant stands up and then knocks down. It does not reflect the ruling of the Court. In line with the foregoing, it should be noted that on Page 12 of Appellant's Brief,

Appellant states that nothing in Paragraph 19 of the Uniform Real Estate Contract permits a "wrong-doer" the right to "collect twice under the contract". Respondent again wishes to point out that Kellogg was not a wrong-doer and that all that Kellogg wants is the payments due to him under the contract. Kellogg has not received payment for the sums lawfully due to him once, much less twice. It is obvious that Appellant is seeking a windfall. Appellant received \$6,000.00 as compensation for his paying a judgment of \$3,114.61 and is now seeking credit against the contract for an additional \$3,114.61.

ARGUMENT - POINT II

THE COURT DID NOT RULE THAT PARAGRAPH 19 OF THE UNIFORM REAL ESTATE CONTRACT MODIFIED THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPH 18.

Appellant has again set up a straw-man. The Court ruled the Uniform Real Estate Contract must be interpreted as a whole. That since the expenditure by Appellant on the Thayne judgment was totally reimbursed, Appellant could not escape the payments due under the contract. In the case before the Court, Peguillan provided a title policy to Larsen which gave full coverage in the event that the title was not clear. Larsen provided Haueter with a re-issue on that policy. In fact, in part of his arguments to the Court, Mr. Minor agreed with the basic principle that the Court was getting at:

"The Court: Suppose to simply illustrate, as i

see the probable situation here, suppose the title insurance company had said right at the outset, 'We sure goofed. We missed that judgment. We will pay it off, No Sheriff's Sale'.

Mr. Miner: They didn't do that. They fought us right down to the wire with every defense they could find.

The Court: Suppose they had done that?

Mr. Miner: Then, we wouldn't be here today."

Paragraph 18 is not intended to give the Buyer under a Uniform Real Estate Contract a bonanza. It is intended to protect a buyer from having to pay more than the contracted-for purchase price. However, if a Buyer is compensated for sums advanced, surely then he cannot also withhold or suspend payments.

The Seller provided a title insurance policy in accordance with the Uniform Real Estate Contract to guarantee the buyer clear title. Surely, a Seller's obligation under the Uniform Real Estate Contract cannot be increased by an assignment of the contract by the buyer.

The real estate transactions which resulted in this lawsuit requires the seller of the property to provide the buyer with a clear title. Both the earnest money agreement (11-P) and the contract (11-P) establish that a seller's obligation is met by providing title insurance. If there is an undisclosed defect in the title, the buyer has several remedies. In this case the Appellant had decided to pursue the remedies under the title policy he received as part of the transaction. The Appellant made his election, proceeded with

it and was quite successful. The buyer is entitled to clear title. The buyer is not entitled to pursue more than one remedy. The Uniform Real Estate Contract does not envision that a buyer recover more than once for damages resulting from a title encumbrance. The Appellant wishes the Court to provide him with a windfall. He has received \$6,000.00 in compensation for paying \$3,114.61 on a judgment. He now wishes to escape payment under the contract for sums which are in fact owed. The result would be highly inequitable, Appellant would benefit in the sum of \$9,114.61 for having paid off a \$3,114.61 judgment. Respondent Kellogg would not receive the funds due to him under the contract. Such an interpretation of the transactions before the Court is unreasonable.

ARGUMENT - POINT III

THE COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT KELLOGG HAD NO KNOWLEDGE OF THE THAYNE JUDGMENT AND THAT HE PURCHASED THE SELLER'S INTEREST IN THE CONTRACT FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION.

The Appellant's innuendo to the contrary, the Court clearly ruled that Kellogg had no knowledge of the Thayne judgment and was not a "wrong-doer". (Tr.79) This finding is amply supported by the record (Tr. 30, 31 and 55). The Appellant in effect, is requesting that the Supreme Court make a factual finding contrary to that of the lower court. The Supreme Court has stated on numerous instances that it will view evidence and inferences drawn therefrom in the light most favorable to sustaining the decision. See for example, Oberhansly vs. Earle, No. 14820 Filed December 21, 1977 and Cutler

vs. Bowen, 543 P. 2d 1349 (1975). The consideration paid by respondent Kellogg was not disputed. No evidence was introduced to controvert his testimony that he did not know of the Thayne judgment. The lower court's finding in this regard should be upheld.

ARGUMENT - POINT IV

THE COLLATERAL SOURCE RULE IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CASE.

The collateral source rule is one which is applicable to tort cases. 22 Am. Jur. 2d Damages 286, §206 in explaining the collateral source rule, states that it is a rule applicable to tort cases. See also footnote 12, 22 Am Jur. 2nd Damages 284, §204.

Not only does the collateral source rule apply only to tort cases, but almost always only to health, accident and life insurance proceeds. See 77 Harvard L. Rev. 741, 742 (Feb. 1964). See also "The Collateral Source Rule" 21 Ohio St. L.J. 231, 233:

"An examination of a long line of cases in many of the jurisdictions indicates that the doctrine has been applied in the following types of situations: (1) salary received by the injured person during his period of disability; (2) pensions, whether retirement or disability, received as a result of the injuries; (3) insurance proceeds-death, hospitalization, medical care, etc.; (4) hospital and medical care furnished gratuitously."

The cases cited by Appellant are traditional tort cases arising from automobile accidents. The collateral source rule does apply to such cases, but not to contractual cases as the one before

the Court.

Furthermore, in the collateral source cases, the insured paid for the policy or had the right pursuant to an employment arrangement of his own.

In this case, the insurance was provided by the seller to cover title defects. It is not a collateral benefit, but one arising directly from the transaction in question.

The collateral source rule, as an exception to the doctrine of mitigating damages and permitting recovery only for actual losses should be strictly construed.

ARGUMENT - POINT V

THE TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY BY PAYING THE ENTIRE CLAIM HAS SUBROGATED TO ANY CLAIM APPELLANT HAD AGAINST ANY THIRD PARTIES.

Paragraph 9 of the title insurance policy (Exhibit 19-0) provides, "Whenever the Company shall have settled a claim under this policy, all right of subrogation shall vest in the Company unaffected by any act of the Insured, and it shall be subrogated to and be entitled to all rights and remedies which the Insured would have against any person or property in respect to such claim had this policy not be issued."

By receiving payment pursuant to that policy from the title insurance company, any claim of the Appellant against any wrongdoer is passed to the title insurance company.

The rule is aptly stated in 44 Am Jur. 2d, §1320; p. 743: "The general rule is that upon payment of a loss, the insurer, if

the insurers in the case of co-insurance, is entitled to be subrogated pro-tanto, to any right of action which the insured may have against the third person, whose negligence or wrongful act caused the loss."

The Supreme Court of Utah has supported the majority position. In Potomac Insurance Company vs. Nickson 64 Utah 395, 23 Pac. 445 (1934) the Court stated: "The Courts have almost unanimously held that when an insurer has paid an entire loss, it is the only real party in interest."

In State Farm Mut. Ins. Co. vs. Farmers Insurance Exchange, 22 U. 2d 183 (1969), the Supreme Court stated:

"Subrogation springs from equity concluding that one having been reimbursed for a specific loss should not be entitled to a second reimbursement therefor." Id at 184.

The recognized law is also stated in 13 ALR 3d 229, 248 §6(a):

"In most of the cases wherein the question has arisen or been commented upon, it has been held or recognized that where a property loss caused by the wrongful act of a third person has been fully paid by insurance the insured cannot maintain an action in his own name against the tortfeasor to recover for the loss, on the theory that the insured has no interest in the claim, his insurer being subrogated to all his rights therein."

Numerous courts have held that when an insurance company pays a loss in full, that only the insurance company has the right to bring an action against a third party who caused the loss. See United States